
UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT
DISTRICT OF MINNESOTA

_______________________________________

In Re: Case No. 04-43755-NCD

Denise Darsell Day Chapter 13 case

Debtor
_______________________________________

OBJECTION TO CONFIRMATION OF
MODIFIED CHAPTER 13 PLAN

TO: Debtors and all parties in interest specified in Local Rule 3015-3.

1. First Federal Capital Bank (“First Federal”), successor by merger to Liberty State

Bank, by and through its undersigned counsel, hereby objects to the confirmation of the debtor’s

proposed  Amended Chapter 13 Plan herein dated August 17, 2004, and requests an Order

denying confirmation of the plan.

2. The Court will hold a hearing on this objection at 10:30 A.M. on September 2,

2004, before the Honorable Nancy C. Dreher, in Courtroom 7 West, U.S. Courthouse, 300 South

4th Street, Minneapolis, Minnesota.

3. Any response to this objection must be filed and delivered no later than 10:30 a.m.

on September 1, 2004, which is 24 hours before the time set for hearing, or served and filed by

mail not later than August 30, 2004, which is three days before the time set for hearing.  UNLESS

A RESPONSE OPPOSING THE OBJECTION AND MOTION IS TIMELY FILED, THE

COURT MAY IN ITS DISCRETION GRANT THE RELIEF SOUGHT IN THE OBJECTION



AND MOTION WITHOUT A HEARING.

4. The Court has jurisdiction over this objection and motion pursuant to 28 U.S.C.

§157 and §1334, Fed. R. Bankruptcy Procedure 5005 and Local Rule 1070-1.  This is a core

proceeding.  The Petition commencing this Chapter 13 case was filed on July 7, 2004.  The case

is now pending in this court.

5. This objection arise under 11 U.S.C. §1325(a)(3), (4) and (5), and Local Rule

3015-2(a).

6. The debtor is indebted to First Federal in the principal amount of $37,537.01 as of

the date of bankruptcy filing, secured by a duly recorded mortgage on non-homestead real

property of the debtor located at 1138 Thomas Avenue, in St. Paul, Minnesota.  The property is

income-generating property as there is a renter paying rent to the debtor at that location.  The

indebtedness and security interest are evidenced by a Mortgage Note and a Mortgage dated

August 30, 2001, signed by debtor Denise D. Day, copies of which are attached hereto as

Exhibits A and B, respectively.  The security interest was perfected by recording the mortgage on

October 22, 2001, Document No. 3434483.  The Mortgage Note provides that interest accrues

on the loan at the rate of 9.50%, and that the balance of the loan plus accrued interest is due in

full in a “balloon payment” on September 5, 2006.  As of the present date, the payments on the

loan to First Federal are delinquent and unpaid in the total amount of $975.00, as follows:

payments of $325.00 per month due June 5, July 5, and August 5, 2004.

7. The mortgage held by First Federal is believed to be a second mortgage, and



subject to a prior first mortgage on the property.  The first mortgage is held by GE Mortgage

Services Inc.  According to the debtor’s schedules, the balance owing to GE Mortgage Inc. is

$49,500.26 as of the date of the debtor’s bankruptcy filing.

8. The debtor has grossly undervalued the subject property which is collateral for

the loan to First Federal, and that undervaluation in the debtor’s schedules appears to be

deliberate and fraudulent.

9. The fair market value of the real property securing the loan is actually at least

$164,500.00.  There is substantial equity in the property, as follows:

FMV of property $164,500.00
Less:

First Mortgage of GE Mortgage      ( $  49,500.26 )
Second Mortgage of First Federal   ( $  37,537.01 )

Equity in the collateral $  77,462.73

Accordingly, the claim of First Federal is secured to the full extent of the outstanding loan balance

owing to First Federal.

10. The debtor has undervalued the market value of the property at just $59,392.00 in

her schedules.  In fact, the property is worth $105,108.00 more than alleged by the debtor.

($164,500 - $59,392 = $105,108.)  The debtor’s schedules indicate the basis for the her alleged

value is: “Purchased Price (1995): $56,000.00.  1998 refinanced appraisal $59,000.”  In other

words, the debtor states that she purchased the property in 1995, nine years ago, and since then

it has appreciated only $3,392.00 to $59,392.00.  At the meeting of creditors the debtor also

testified and admitted that her estimated value of $59,392.00 for the property was indeed based



on an outdated real estate appraisal from 1998.

11. However, the debtor is aware that the property has greatly increased in value

since the appraisal back in1998, that it has been more recently appraised at a much higher value,

and that even the current tax assessed market value of the property is substantially higher than

the market value now alleged by the debtor.

a. The debtor herself stated in her Uniform Residential Loan Application submitted

to First Federal Bank on July 3, 2001, that she herself estimated the property to

be valued at $150,000.00 at that time.  A copy thereof is attached as Exhibit C.

b. A real estate appraisal dated July 19, 2001, performed for the purpose of valuing

the property at the time First Federal made this loan to debtor, valued the

property at $122,000.00 at that time.  A copy thereof is attached as Exhibit D.

c. The Ramsey County Minnesota property tax statement indicates the assessed

market value of the property on January 2, 2003 was $152,600.00, and the

assessed market value on January 2, 2004, was $164,500.00.  A copy thereof is

attached as Exhibit E.  The property tax statement also indicates that the purchase

price of the property in 1995 was in fact $64,900.00, not $56,000.00 as alleged by

the debtor.

12. Clearly, the property has continued to appreciate in value since the debtor

originally purchased it in 1995, and the debtor herself is aware of this.  First Federal believes the

most recent tax assessed market value of $164,500.00 represents the true fair market value of the



property as of the date of the debtor’s bankruptcy filing.

13. The debtor’s deliberate under-valuation of the property also appears to be

convenient as it is the value which would afford the debtor the maximum use of the “catch all”

exemption under 11 U.S.C. §522(d)(5).  By undervaluing this property, the debtor is able to

claim a total of only $10,255.00 exempt under §522(d)(5), thereby keeping her plan payments

artificially low and “cram down” the balance owing to First Federal, since exceeding the

exemption limit by truthfully disclosing the property’s value would require the debtor to pay

more into the plan, pursuant to 11 U.S.C. §1325(a)(4), to the extent the true value of the

property exceeds the exemption limit.  The payments proposed by the plan may not be less than

the total amount that would be paid under a Chapter 7 liquidation of the estate of the debtor, as

contemplated by 11 U.S.C. §1325(a)(4) and 11 U.S.C. §1325(a)(3).

14. The debtor’s Modified Plan dated August 17, 2004, makes no provision for any

payments to First Federal until month 20, and thereafter the plan proposes to pay First Federal

only $9,241.74 plus interest at 8 percent, for a total of only $10,677.12.  This is substantially

less than the balance of First Federal’s fully-secured claim.

15. First Federal objects to the Modified Plan because its secured claim is undervalued

and the interest rate proposed in the plan is not sufficient.

16. The debtor’s Modified Plan fails to comply with 11 U.S.C. §1322(a)(3), since the

plan fails to treat fully-secured creditor First Federal the same as other similarly situated fully-

secured creditors in the same class.



17. The debtor’s Modified Plan fails to comply with 11 U.S.C. §1325(a)(5)(B)(ii), as

the property proposed to be distributed by the debtor under the terms of the Modified Plan is

less than the amount of the secured claim, given the true value of the property.

18. First Federal further objects to the Modified Plan on the grounds that the debtor

has failed to truthfully and honestly disclose the value of her assets in good faith, and the

payments proposed by the plan are less that the total amount that would be paid under a

Chapter 7 liquidation of the estate of the debtor, as contemplated by 11 U.S.C. §1325(a)(4) and

11 U.S.C. §1325(a)(3).

19. The Modified Plan does not provide First Federal Bank with adequate protection

of its secured interest in the property.

20. The plan, as proposed, is not made in good faith by the debtor.

21. Movant gives notice that it may call an officer of First Federal Capital Bank to

testify at the hearing, as well as a certified real estate appraiser.

     Respectfully submitted

Dated:    August 25, 2004                         By:    /e/ Patrick J. McGuigan                               
Patrick J. McGuigan, Esq. (#70592)
Randall S. Johnson (#229039)
Attorneys for First Federal Capital Bank
176 Snelling Avenue North, Suite 200
Saint Paul, MN  55104
Telephone: (651) 646-6325













































UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT
DISTRICT OF MINNESOTA

_______________________________________

In Re: Case No. 04-43755-NCD

Denise Darsell Day Chapter 13 case

Debtor
_______________________________________

UNSWORN DECLARATION OF SERVICE

I, Shari L. Hunter, hereby declare that I am employed by Patrick J. McGuigan Esq., one
of the attorneys for the movant/creditor First Federal Capital Bank, and that on August 25, 2004,
I served true and correct copies of the annexed

1. Objection to Confirmation of Chapter 13 Plan;
2. Unsworn Declaration of Service; and
3. Proposed Order denying confirmation of plan

on all persons and entities listed below, at the addresses shown by mailing to each of them a true
and correct copy thereof, enclosed in an envelope with first class postage prepaid, and depositing
the same in the U.S. Mail at St. Paul, Minnesota:

Denise Darsell Day
301 Bluff Road
Carver, MN 55315

Jasmine Z. Keller
Chapter 13 Trustee
12 South Sixth Street, Suite 310
Minneapolis, MN 55402

Paul E. Ross
Ross & Norton
287 Marschall Rd, Ste 203-A
Shakopee, MN 55379

US Trustee
1015 U.S. Courthouse
300 South Fourth Street
Minneapolis, MN 55415

And I declare, under penalty of perjury, that the foregoing is true and correct.

Dated this     25th     day of        August       , 2004.

 /e/ Shari L. Hunter                                         
Shari L. Hunter



UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT
DISTRICT OF MINNESOTA

_______________________________________

In Re: Case No. 04-43755-NCD

Denise Darsell Day Chapter 13 case

Debtor ORDER
_______________________________________

The above-captioned matter came on before the Court on September 2, 2004, for hearing

on the confirmation of the debtor’s proposed Modified Chapter 13 Plan, and upon the objection

of First Federal Capital Bank, a secured creditor, objecting to confirmation of said plan.

Appearances, if any, are noted in the record.

Upon the proceedings at hearing and upon all of the files and records herein,

IT IS  HEREBY ORDERED that confirmation of the debtor’s Modified Chapter 13 Plan

dated August 17, 2004, is denied.

BY THE COURT

Dated:_________________________ ____________________________________
Nancy C. Dreher
Judge of Bankruptcy Court


